
Ridgewood Trails
Community Development District 

SEPTEMBER 3, 2025



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
District Website:  www.ridgewoodtrailscdd.com 

August 26, 2025 

Board of Supervisors 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The Ridgewood Trails Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, September 3, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge Amenity Center, 
1667 Azalea Ridge Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida 32068.  

I. Roll Call

II. Public Comments (for agenda items listed below)

III. Ratification of Agreements
A. T & M Electric

B. J.C. Harward 

IV. Consideration of Proposal from Sterling for Egress Gate

V. Staff Reports
A. Attorney

B. Engineer

C. Manager – Goals and Objectives for Fiscal Year 2026

D. Operation Manager

E. Amenity Manager
1. Report

2. Brightview QSA

VI. Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments

http://www.ridgewoodtrailscdd.com/


 VII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 9, 2025, Meeting 
 
  B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement  
 
  C. Assessment Receipt Schedule  
  
  D. Approval of Check Register  
  
 VIII. Next Meeting Scheduled for: November 5, 2025 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea 

Ridge Amenity Center  
 
 IX. Adjournment 
 
 
Board Oversight 
Supervisor Edson – Landscape 
Supervisor Alba – Security & Technology 
Supervisor Schumacher – Maintenance 
Supervisor Miller – Athletics 
Supervisor Wetherbee - Aquatics 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



1 
4935-9962-8884.2  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND T &M ELECTRIC OF CLAY COUNTY, LLC 

FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 23rd day of July, 2025, by 
and between: 
 

Ridgewood Trails Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in Clay County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL 32092 (“District”); and 
 
T&M Electric of Clay County, LLC, a Florida limited liability, with a mailing 
address of 200 College Drive, Orange Park, FL 32065 (“Contractor”, together with 
District,  “Parties”).  

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 

constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide electrical 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to provide 
electrical services and has agreed to provide to the District those services identified in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto (“Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
   
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals stated above are true and 
correct and by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 2. DUTIES. The District agrees to use Contractor to provide the Services in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the 
Contractor are described in Exhibit A hereto.   

 
A. Contractor shall provide the Services, as described in Exhibit A.  The Services shall 

include any effort specifically required by this Agreement and Exhibit A 
reasonably necessary to allow the District to receive the maximum benefit of all of 
the Services and items described herein and demonstrated in Exhibit A, including 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



2 
4935-9962-8884.2  

but not limited to, the repair, construction, installation, and all materials reasonably 
necessary. To the extent any of the provisions of this Agreement are in conflict with 
the provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement controls. 

 
B. Services shall commence upon execution of this Agreement and be completed 

within thirty (30) calendar days of execution of this Agreement, unless extended in 
writing by the District in its sole discretion or terminated earlier in accordance with 
Section 13 herein.   

 
C. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to 

this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor 
hereby agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

 
D. Contractor shall perform all Services in a neat and workmanlike manner.  In the 

event the District in its sole determination, finds that the work of Contractor is not 
satisfactory to District, District shall have the right to immediately terminate this 
Agreement and will only be responsible for payment of work satisfactorily 
completed and for materials actually incorporated into the Services. 

 
E. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 

its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 
While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may be 
required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and 
controlling all aspects to assure completion of the Services.  

 
F. Contractor shall report directly to the District Manager.  Contractor shall use all 

due care to protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from 
damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor’s 
activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours. 

 
G. Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of 

waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under the Agreement.  At 
completion of the Services, the Contractor shall remove from the site waste 
materials, rubbish, tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials.  
If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided herein, the District may do so and the 
cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor. 

 
SECTION 3.  COMPENSATION, PAYMENT, AND RETAINAGE.   

 
A. The District shall pay Contractor a total amount of Thirteen Thousand Nine 

Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars ($13,975.00) for the Services as identified in 
Exhibit A attached hereto. The District shall pay Contractor a deposit of 50% of 
the total amount upon execution of this Agreement and the remaining 50% shall be 
due upon completion of the Services and acceptance by the District.  Such amounts 
include all materials and labor provided for in Exhibit A and all items, labor, 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9

Tom
Cross-Out

Tom
Text Box
Repairs to hard scape, landscape, irrigation or sidewalk is excluded per proposal dated 7/21/2025



3 
4935-9962-8884.2  

materials, or otherwise, to provide the District the maximum benefits of the 
Services.   

 
B. If the District should desire additional work or services, the Contractor agrees to 

negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or services.  Upon 
successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an addendum, addenda, 
or change order(s) to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be compensated for 
such agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable 
to the parties and agreed to in writing. 

 
C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 

Contractor, that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and 
require evidence, in the form of lien releases or partial waivers of lien, to be 
submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or 
laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the 
payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, 
as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in 
a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to 
services to the District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the 
obligations with regard to the  withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security 
payments, Workmen’s Compensation, Unemployment Compensation 
contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

 
SECTION 4. WARRANTY.  The Contractor warrants to the District that all materials 

furnished under this Agreement shall be new, and that all services and materials shall be of good 
quality, free from faults and defects, and will conform to the standards and practices for projects 
of similar design and complexity in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the 
best interest of the District. In addition to all manufacturer warranties for materials purchased for 
purposes of this Agreement, all Work provided by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be warranted for two (2) years from the date of acceptance of the Work by the District.  Contractor 
shall replace or repair warranted items to the District’s satisfaction and in the District’s discretion.  
Neither final acceptance of the Work, nor final payment therefore, nor any provision of the 
Agreement shall relieve Contractor of responsibility for defective or deficient materials or 
Services.  If any of the materials or Services are found to be defective, deficient or not in 
accordance with the Agreement, Contractor shall correct, remove and replace it promptly after 
receipt of a written notice from the District and correct and pay for any other damage resulting 
therefrom to District property or the property of landowners within the District.  
 
 SECTION 5. INSURANCE. 
 

A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following 
insurance: 

 
(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Florida. 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



4 
4935-9962-8884.2  

(2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal 
liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and property damage 
liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property 

damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation. 
 

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per accident or disease. 

 
(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than 

One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and 
for property damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out of or 
resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the Contractor of any 
owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other equipment 
required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as additional 

insured.  The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance 
evidencing compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to 
the District unless it provides that any change or termination within the policy 
periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty 
(30) days of prior written notice to the District.  Insurance coverage shall be from 
a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida. 

 
C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the 

District has the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in 
which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall 
furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with the 
District’s obtaining the required insurance. 

 
 SECTION 6. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or 
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, 
costs, interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, 
or loss or damage, whether monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part 
by, or in connection with the Services to be performed by Contractor, its 
subcontractors, its employees and agents in connection with this Agreement, 
including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement proceedings 
with respect thereto.  Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires Contractor 
to indemnify the District for the District’s percentage of fault if the District is 
adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and 
Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



5 
4935-9962-8884.2  

for any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the 
District, regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at 
fault.  

 
B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 

judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, 
court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, 
paralegal fees, expert witness fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in 
bankruptcy proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or 
judgments against the District. 
 

 SECTION 7. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability 
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  

 
 SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall 
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision 
thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) 
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 9. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for 
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or 
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason 
of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately 
discharge any such claim or lien.  In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such 
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition 
to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be 
effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 

 
SECTION 10. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A 

default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 
or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



6 
4935-9962-8884.2  

 
SECTION 11. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 

contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 

 
SECTION 12. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 

upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 

 
 SECTION 13. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately 
for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide 
thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up 
until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District 
may have against the Contractor.   

 
SECTION 14. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any 

governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All 
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by the Contractor. 

 
 SECTION 15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 16. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor 
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning 
or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or 
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance 
of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent 
the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



7 
4935-9962-8884.2  

 SECTION 17. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 18. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either the District or the 
Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 19. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
None of the provisions of Exhibit A shall apply to this Agreement and Exhibit A shall not be 
incorporated herein, except that Exhibit A is applicable to the extent that it states the scope of 
services for the labor and materials to be provided under this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 20. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both Parties. 
 
 SECTION 21. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 SECTION 22. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notice” or “Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 
 A. If to District:   Ridgewood Trails Community  

Development District 
      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, FL 32092     
 Attn:  District Manager 

 
With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 

      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 

B. If to the Contractor:  T&M Electric of Clay County, LLC 
     200 College Drive 

Orange Park, FL 32065   
 Attn: Jason Bush 

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



8 
4935-9962-8884.2  

 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 

SECTION 23. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 
 SECTION 24. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida.  All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be Clay County, Florida. 

 
 SECTION 25. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.  Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the 
District is Marilee Giles (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the 
extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the 
District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the 
District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  
reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 
the contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to 
the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to 
the District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, 
maintain and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida 
laws.  When such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any 
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is 
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



9 
4935-9962-8884.2  

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (904) 940-5850, 
MGILES@GMSNF.COM, 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 
114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092. 
 

 SECTION 26. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
  

SECTION 27. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm’s length transaction.  The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 28. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Additionally, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall 
be considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as 
an original signature. Without limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an 
original signature, electronically scanned and transmitted versions (e.g. via PDF) of an original 
signature, or signatures created in a digital format.  
 
 SECTION 29. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable 
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida 
Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland 
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. 
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief 
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes.  By entering into 
this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with 
the Contractor under Section 448.095(5)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately 
preceding the date of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 30. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES.   The Contractor 
agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general 
in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant to such section and to 
incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes.  

                            
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9

mailto:MGILES@GMSNF.COM


10 
4935-9962-8884.2  

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9





12 
4935-9962-8884.2  

Exhibit A 
Scope of Services 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 457D8BBC-5F43-41FB-A848-FECA9BEB2CF9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Proposal #181366

Date: 8/13/2025

Ridgewood Trails
3813 Great Falls Loop,
Middleburg , FL 32068

Property:Customer
Riverside Management Services

Ridgewood Trails Egress Gate

Add 1-48" walk gate with panic hardware and mesh panels existing 
pool fence, electronic access control by others.  

SFN- Commercial Install

Items Quantity Price
48" Egress Gate with Mesh/Panic Bar 1.00

SFN- Commercial Install: $2,500.00

PROJECT TOTAL: $2,500.00

Terms & Conditions

By By

Lauren Baylis

8/13/2025Date Date

United Land Services



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 

 

Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 
 Performance Measures/Standards & 

Annual Reporting Form 
 

October 1, 2025 – September 30, 2026 
 

1. Community Communication and Engagement 
Goal 1.1: Public Meetings Compliance 

Objective: Hold at least three regular Board of Supervisor meetings per year to 
conduct CDD related business and discuss community needs. 
Measurement: Number of public board meetings held annually as evidenced by 
meeting minutes and legal advertisements. 
Standard: A minimum of three board meetings were held during the Fiscal Year. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 1.2: Notice of Meetings Compliance 

Objective: Provide public notice of meetings in accordance with Florida Statutes, 
using at least two communication methods. 
Measurement: Timeliness and method of meeting notices as evidenced by posting to 
CDD website, publishing in local newspaper and via electronic communication. 
Standard: 100% of meetings were advertised per Florida statute on at least two 
mediums (i.e., newspaper, CDD website, electronic communications). 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 1.3: Access to Records Compliance 

Objective: Ensure that meeting minutes and other public records are readily available 
and easily accessible to the public by completing monthly CDD website checks. 
Measurement: Monthly website reviews will be completed to ensure meeting minutes 
and other public records are up to date as evidenced by District Management’s 
records. 
Standard: 100% of monthly website checks were completed by District Management. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
2. Infrastructure and Facilities Maintenance 
Goal 2.1: Field Management and/or District Management Site Inspections 

Objective: Field Manager and/or District Manager will conduct inspections per District 
Management services agreement to ensure safety and proper functioning of the 
District’s infrastructure. 
Measurement: Field Manager and/or District Manager visits were successfully 
completed per management agreement as evidenced by Field Manager and/or District 
Manager’s reports, notes or other record keeping method. 
Standard: 100% of site visits were successfully completed as described within district 
management services agreement 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 



 

 

3. Financial Transparency and Accountability 
Goal 3.1: Annual Budget Preparation 

Objective: Prepare and approve the annual proposed budget by June 15 and final 
budget was adopted by September 30 each year. 
Measurement: Proposed budget was approved by the Board before June 15 and final 
budget was adopted by September 30 as evidenced by meeting minutes and budget 
documents listed on CDD website and/or within district records.  
Standard: 100% of budget approval & adoption were completed by the statutory 
deadlines and posted to the CDD website. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 3.2: Financial Reports 

Objective: Publish to the CDD website the most recent versions of the following 
documents: Annual Audit, current fiscal year budget with any amendments, and most 
recent financials within the latest agenda package.    
Measurement: Annual Audit, previous years’ budgets, and financials are accessible to 
the public as evidenced by corresponding documents on the CDD’s website. 
Standard: CDD website contains 100% of the following information: Most recent 
Annual Audit, most recent adopted/amended fiscal year budget, and most recent 
agenda package with updated financials. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 3.3: Annual Financial Audit 

Objective: Conduct an annual independent financial audit per statutory requirements 
and publish the results to the CDD website for public inspection, and transmit to the 
State of Florida. 
Measurement: Timeliness of audit completion and publication as evidenced by 
meeting minutes showing board accepted and annual audit is available on the CDD’s 
website and transmitted to the State of Florida. 
Standard: Audit was completed by an independent auditing firm per statutory 
requirements and results were posted to the CDD website and transmitted to the State 
of Florida. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
 
 
Chair/Vice Chair: ____________________________   Date: ________________ 
Print Name: _________________________________ 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 
 

 
 

District Manager: ____________________________   Date: ________________ 
Print Name: _________________________________ 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



9/3/2025 

 
  

Azalea Ridge at 
Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 
Amenity Management Report 

Rob Alba 
AMENITY MANAGER 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.  
 
 

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2025  

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 
Amenity Management Report 

September 3rd, 2025 
 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Rob Alba 
  Amenity Manager 
 

RE:  Azalea Ridge Amenity Management Report – September 3rd, 2025 
 
The following is a summary of items related to the field operations, maintenance, 
and amenity management of Azalea Ridge.  

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2025  

Community Updates 

MANAGER 
 

• Light pole report completed and sent to Clay Electric 

o 118 Light Poles document and inventoried (addresses/pole #s) 

o 19 Malfunctioning lights 

• Creating digital archive of access card forms and paperwork 

o Scanning record, updating contact info/access list in access card system,   
updating info in community email list, and filing in digital archive 

o Roughly 284 units digitized (50% completion) 

 
MAINTENANCE 
 

• Replaced security chain across powerline entrance at Azalea Ridge Blvd 

• Added No Trespass signs to Powerline security chains 

• Ordered and installed “Access Card Required” signs and gym rules sign 

• Push to exit buttons for pool gates replaced 

• Amenity Drop box label installed with contact information. 

• 1 of 4 Backflows tested and repaired as per county requirements 

• Installed sidewalk at Warm Springs Way playground 

• Walked, Measured and Marked locations for Light Bollards with Contractor 

• Unpacked and stored mulch boarders for Bronco Playground 
 

 

UPCOMING MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 
 

• Light Bollard installation 
• Playground Installation 
• Partial erosion ditch fill-in Warm Springs Way retention pond 

 

EVENTS 

• Kids Dive-In August 9th 
• Adult Swim Dive-In September 1st 
• Co-Sponsor Fall Fest Event Planning - October 11th 

o HOA agreed to add $1000 to support event budget 
• Fall Community Yard Sale October 18th/19th 

 
ROOM RENTALS  

o Total number of rentals for July and August (7) 
o (1) rental tentatively scheduled for September and October 

 

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2025  



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2025  



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2025  

a 
 
 
 
 
For any questions or comments regarding the above information please contact 
Rob Alba, Amenity Manager, at Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com. 
 
 
 Respectfully, 

 
Rob Alba 

 
 

 

 Conclusion 

 

mailto:Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com


Number of Poles not working (NW): 19
Street Name Adrdress #  Lot # Pole # Description of Malfunction
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 5 Light out all times
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 8 Light out all times
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 15 Light out all times
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 16 Light out all times
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 17 Light out all times
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 21 Light out all times
Azalea Ridge BLVD Entry Way n/a 26 Light out all times
Beacon Rock Lane 3847 159 1 Cycle off/on; low output
Blackwater Way 1822 547 8 Out all times
Great Falls Loop 3920 83 10 low output/ flickering
Great Falls Loop 3946 78 11 Cycle off/on; low output
Great Falls Loop 4154 35 55 out all times
Great Falls Loop 4180 27 ? cycle off/on; low output
Great Falls Loop 4200 22 5 Out all times
Green River Place 4103 386 2 cycle off/on; low output
High Prairie Lane 1880 238 52 flicker/ low output
High Prairie Lane 1921 184 1 cycle off/on/ low output
Packer Meadow Way 4278 321 4 off/on; low output flicker
Reed Valley Way 1894 147 ? Cycle off/on; low output



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



 / 1 6

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: Ridgewood Trails CDD

General Information

Customer Focus Areas
Entrances, Pool area

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Thursday, Aug 21, 2025

Tuesday, Nov 18, 2025

Karen Fisher 

Karen Fisher 



 / 2 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Summer annuals are
healthy and have filled in
nicely.

Mulch install was
completed.

Mulch install was
completed and Crape
Myrtles are looking
healthy.

Hard edging throughout
is looking sharp.

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4



 / 3 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Trimming and detail work
is in rotation.

Mulch install was
completed and beds are
weed and trash free.

Pavers are crack weed
free throughout the Pool
and Amenity Center.

Base maintenance is in
rotation and tree
canopies are lifted
throughout.

5 6

7 8

5

6

7

8



 / 4 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Pond 3 maintenance is in
rotation - we were given
temporary access on
Great Falls Loop to
service.

Mulch install was
completed. All Palms will
be pruned this month.

Mulch install was
completed and trees are
sucker free throughout.

Property is neatly blown
off every visit.

9 10

11 12

9

10

11

12



 / 5 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Mulch install was
completed.

Dead Tree at the back of
the Bronco Rd. Pocket
Park - will submit a
proposal to flush cut and
remove.

Pocket Parks throughout
are well maintained.
Contract mulch does not
include these areas - will
submit a separate
proposal to install mulch.

JEA Station at the Warm
Springs Way Cul-de-Sac
is in neat order.

13 14

15 16

13

14

15

16



 / 6 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Large pond behind Warm
Springs Way is in
rotation.

Large pond behind Warm
Springs Way is in
rotation.

17

18

17

18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, July 9, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge Amenity 

Center, 1667 Azalea Ridge Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 

 Michael Wetherbee Chairman 

 Jacqui Proctor Miller Vice Chairperson 

 Cassie Alba Supervisor 

 Scott Edson Supervisor 

 Tom Schumacher Supervisor 

 

 Also present were: 

 

 Marilee Giles District Manager 

 Katie Buchanan District Counsel by telephone 

 Jay Soriano GMS 

 Rob Alba RMS 

 Several Residents 

 

 

 The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the July 9, 2025 

meeting.   

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal from C Buss 

Enterprises for Pool Parts 

 Mr. Soriano stated this is a filter bracket that needs to be replaced every couple of years. 

 



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

2 

On MOTION by Mr. Edson seconded by Ms. Miller with all in favor 

the proposal from C Buss Enterprises for pool parts in the amount 

of $1,976.00 was approved.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2026 

 Ms. Buchanan stated the initial resolution adopts the budget, that is the appropriations 

resolution, and that identifies the line items and the full amount of the budget as well as the 

assessments to be collected.  It does allow for line-item amendments so long as they are within 

certain limitations, $15,00 or 15%.   

 The second resolution is the assessment resolution and that is put in place to provide for 

the operation and maintenance assessments necessary to fund the budget and all your assessments 

will be collected on the Clay County property tax bill.  That means that once the taxes are paid by 

the homeowner, the tax collector will send it to the district in increments throughout winter into 

early spring.  This gives the district’s management office the ability to prepare and modify the 

assessment roll based on the information they have available. 

 Ms. Giles gave an overview of the proposed fiscal year 2026 general fund, debt service 

fund and capital reserve fund budgets. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Mr. Wetherbee with all in 

favor the public hearing was opened. 

 

 Residents had the following comments/questions: reserve fund funding, HOA contribution 

for playground equipment, capital projects, and regulating sprinklers. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Mr. Wetherbee with all in 

favor the public hearing was closed. 

 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2025-05 Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 

Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 

 Ms. Giles stated you have heard the comments from the public.  Is there any guidance from 

the board to staff as it pertains to the FY26 budget?  You can make changes tonight or adopt it as 

is. 

 Mr. Schumacher asked what would keep us from pulling stuff out of the capital reserve? 



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

3 

 Ms. Giles stated you can better earmark it.  It is on there as capital outlay and one year we 

put a line at the very bottom we put as asterisk that said, playground equipment, it listed 

specifically what that was for.  Keep in mind all the funds belong to the district; you don’t have to 

box yourself into such tight rules that you can’t make business decisions.  I think we all agree with 

Dennis, I wouldn’t box yourself in by making a resolution saying you can’t ever use capital reserve 

funds for something not in the reserve study.   

 Mr. Edson stated last time we approved the budget with an increase of $75 with the 

understanding that tonight we could adopt that or a number less than that.  I would like it to be less 

than $75, but if I’m only talking a few dollars I will go along with the $75.   

 Ms. Giles stated right now it is a $6 per month increase.   

 Mr. Schumacher stated I agree with Scott.   

 Ms. Alba asked is a $50 increase going to cover all the stuff you have to do and be able to 

fund the capital reserve? 

 Ms. Giles stated the number is close to what Community Advisors recommended, you can 

lower the assessment amount, but you cannot go above it. 

 

On MOTION Mr. Edson seconded by Mr. Schumacher with two in 

favor and Ms. Miller, Ms. Alba and Mr. Wetherbee opposed the 

motion to lower the increase to $65 failed.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Mr. Edson with all in favor 

Resolution 2025-05 was approved as presented. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2025-06 Imposing Special Assessments and 

Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Wetherbee seconded by Ms. Alba with all in 

favor Resolution 2025-06 was approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Suspension Letters 

 Ms. Giles gave an overview of the incidents and after discussion the board took the 

following action. 

 



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

4 

 Incident: Minor jumping fence and jumping gate to slide and allowing a non-registered 

guest to do same. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Mr. Wetherbee with four 

in favor and Ms. Alba abstained from voting the minor Bennet child 

received 3 months suspension from all district amenities from the 

date of incident. 

 

 Incident: using someone’s access card to enter the pool area and smoking at pool and 

allowing other non-registered guests to get into pool area. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Alba seconded by Ms. Miller with all in favor 

Mr. Nevarez’s roommate was suspended for 3 months from all 

district amenities from date of incident.   

 

 Incident: Two minors were at the pool and used the slide when it was closed, one minor 

jumped the fence, a third minor was trespassed. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Alba seconded by Mr. Schumacher with all in 

favor the Rivera minor was suspended for 3 months from all district 

amenities from date of incident. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Alba seconded by Mr. Schumacker with all in 

favor the Cassels minor was suspended for 3 months from all district 

amenities from date of incident. 

 

 Incident: 4 minors were using the slide with the rope still attached, the person they rented 

from just handed them the access card, the age of the kids appeared to be under 16.  The adult left 

the three minors at the pool. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Alba seconded by Mr. Schumacher with all in 

favor the access card for the owner and renter was suspended for 3 

months from date of incident.   

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

5 

A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

B. Engineer – Public Facilities Report 

 Ms. Giles gave an overview of the public facilities report, copy of which was included in 

the agenda package. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Wetherbee seconded by Mr. Edson with all in 

favor the public facilities report was accepted.  

 

 C. Manager – Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 Meeting Schedule 

 Ms. Giles stated all the supervisors completed their form 1 by July 1st, but you still have 

your ethics training that is due by December 31st.  One supervisor has completed that.  If you want 

to send me an email when you complete that I will keep track of it.   

 On page 37 is the fiscal year 2026 meeting schedule, the first Wednesday of the month.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Alba seconded by Mr. Wetherbee with all in 

favor the fiscal year 2026 meeting schedule was approved. 

 

 D. Operation Manager’s Report –Report 

 Mr. Soriano outlined the two proposals and the board took the following action. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Wetherbee seconded by Mr. Schumacher with 

all in favor the proposal from T&M in the amount of $13,975 for the 

installation of eight bollards was approved. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Ms. Alba with four in 

favor and Mr. Edson opposed the proposal from John Harward in 

the amount of $29,951 to install the playground equipment was 

approved and staff was authorized to work with the chair on the 

playground mulch, border and installation of fencing. 

 

E. Amenity Manager 

 1. Report 



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

6 

 Mr. Alba reviewed the amenity manager’s report, copy of which was included in the 

agenda package and discussed a back-to-school event and replacement of table and chairs, and 

construction debris on CDD property. 

 

 2. Landscape Inspection Report 

 A copy of the landscape report was included in the agenda package. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 

 Mr. Shroyer asked why not let the HOA use the amenity center without renting it for events 

such as poker night? 

 Ms. Alba stated if you want to open the event to all residents within the district there is no 

issue, but once you privatize it you have to rent it.   

 Ms. Giles stated HOAs use it for HOA meetings without renting it. 

 A resident stated we have a speeding issue. 

 Ms. Giles stated we attempted to do a traffic calming study in the district before and they 

have issues with speeders and near accidents and have talked to the neighbors involved in that and 

it doesn’t get anywhere.  To do a traffic calming survey we would conduct a petition and that 

petition would be presented to the properties along the street that is being considered for the traffic 

calming measures and 51% of the houses on the street would have to participate.  The tricky part 

is where do you want the traffic calming survey to happen and will branch out to properties along 

streets where access is dependent upon this street.  It is something the board can talk about again, 

but residents get more attention from their county commissioner and public works than Jay is going 

to get.   

 Mr. Soriano stated the more residents who call or email the commissioner, the more 

attention they will get.  I will point out that this is not our road, it is the county’s road to maintain.   

 Mr. Edson stated I was a little strong on the suspension but keep in mind it is a lot of 

children and you don’t want to hurt the parents, but I don’t know how else to get through to them.  

Sometimes we have to get through to the parents to supervisor their child. 

 Mr. Wetherbee stated I would like to commend Rob; he is doing an awesome job.  We are 

having problems with the access cards as far as people letting other people in who don’t have an 

access card.  We have pool rules posted but does it say must have access card to enter?  



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

7 

 Mr. Soriano stated we have resident only signs and things like that but I don’t think it says 

anything about access cards.  When people jump the fence they know it is wrong. 

 Mr. Wetherbee stated when we moved here we were told that eventually this would become 

the adult pool.  There is nothing that says we can’t change that, right. 

 Mr. Soriano stated if you have an interest in going that route there is nothing that says you 

can’t.  But it is tough to change things, it has been open to everyone and to change it to adult only 

may be tough.   

 Ms. Miller stated my concern would be people bringing their children up here and dropping 

them off at that pool and expect the lifeguards to watch the kids while they come over here.  We 

would need a policy that you can’t drop your kid off and come to the adult pool.   

 Mr. Wetherbee stated if we don’t do that can we think about the gate being moved to the 

front because if you go to this pool you have to go through the gate to go to the restroom and back 

through the gate. 

 Mr. Soriano stated I don’t think that would be too hard.  We will look at that. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 7, 2025 Meeting 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Edson seconded by Mr. Wetherbee with all in 

favor the minutes of the May 7, 2025 meeting were approved as 

presented. 

 

 B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 D. Approval of Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Wetherbee seconded by Mr. Edson with all in 

favor the balance of the consent agenda items was approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for Wednesday, 

September 3, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea 

Ridge Amenity Center, 1667 Azalea Ridge 

Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida 



July 9, 2025 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

8 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is scheduled for September 3, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. in the 

same location. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Miller seconded by Mr. Edson with all in favor 

the meeting adjourned at 8:53 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
July	31,	2025



1

2-3

4

5

6

7-8

9

10

11 Check	Register

Assessment	Receipt	Schedule

Month	to	Month

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Table	of	Contents

Balance	Sheet

General	Fund

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2007A

Capital	Project	Fund	Series	2007A

Capital	Reserve



	 General	 Capital	Reserve Debt	Service Capital	Project Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Cash:
Operating	Account 59,658$														 70,664$														 -$																						 -$																						 130,322$																															

Assessments	Receivable -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																																			
Due	from	Others 5,940																				 -																															 -																															 -																															 5,940																																								

Investments:
State	Board	of	Administration	(SBA) 294,383														 189,165														 -																															 -																															 483,548																																		
US	Bank	-	Custody	Account 45,703																	 -																															 -																															 -																															 45,703																																					

Series	2007
Reserve	A -																															 -																															 10,913																	 -																															 10,913																																					
Interest	A -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																																			
Revenue	A -																															 -																															 8,027																				 -																															 8,027																																								
Prepayment	A -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																																			
Deferred	Costs -																															 -																															 -																															 1,249																				 1,249																																								

Prepaid	Expenses 1,129																				 -																															 -																															 -																															 1,129																																								
Deposits 2,803																				 -																															 -																															 -																															 2,803																																								

Total	Assets 409,616$								 259,829$								 18,940$											 1,249$															 689,633$																											

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 6,058$																	 43,926$														 -$																						 -$																						 49,984$																																		
Accrued	Expenses -																															 -																																																			
Due	to	Other -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																																			

Total	Liabilites 6,058$															 43,926$											 -$																					 -$																					 49,984$																															

Fund	Balance: 	
Nonspendable:
Prepaid	Items 1,129$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,129$																																					
Deposits -																															 -																															 -																															 -																															 -																																																			

Restricted	for:
Debt	Service -																															 -																															 18,940																	 -																															 18,940																																					
Capital	Project	 -																															 -																															 -																															 1,249																				 1,249																																								

Assigned	for:	
Capital	Reserve	Fund -																															 215,903														 -																															 -																															 215,903																																		

Unassigned 402,428														 -																															 -																															 -																															 402,428																																		

Total	Fund	Balances 403,557$								 215,903$								 18,940$											 1,249$															 639,649$																											

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 409,616$											 259,829$											 18,940$														 1,249$																	 689,633$																															

Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
July	31,	2025

1



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	

Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 612,477$														 612,477$													 613,960$									 1,483$																							

Interest	Earned/Misc.	Income 12,000																			 10,000																		 17,269															 7,269																									

Rental	Revenue 3,675																						 3,675																					 4,075																		 400																													

Total		Revenues 628,152$														 626,152$													 635,304$									 9,152$																							

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 8,000$																				 6,667$																			 5,000$															 1,667$																							
PR-FICA 612																										 -	 510																									 383																						 128																													
Engineering 3,200																						 2,667																					 2,200																		 467																													
Attorney 20,000																			 16,667																		 4,349																		 12,318																						
Annual	Audit 3,270																						 -																																	 -																													 -																																					
Assessment	Administration 5,576																						 5,576																					 5,576																		 -																																					
Arbitrage	Rebate 600																										 600																									 600																						 -																																					
Dissemination	Agent 1,124																						 937																									 937																						 -																																					
Trustee	Fees 4,600																						 4,517																					 4,517																		 -																																					
Management	Fees 51,320																			 42,767																		 42,767															 -																																					
Information	Technology 1,908																						 1,590																					 1,590																		 -																																					
Website	Maintenance 1,272																						 1,060																					 1,060																		 -																																					
Telephone 350																										 292																									 150																						 142																													
Postage	&	Delivery 800																										 667																									 942																						 (275)																											
Insurance	General	Liability 8,498																						 8,498																					 8,267																		 231																													
Printing	&	Binding 1,500																						 1,250																					 919																						 331																													
Legal	Advertising 1,800																						 1,500																					 1,050																		 450																													
Other	Current	Charges 907																										 756																									 296																						 460																													
Office	Supplies 100																										 83																												 4																												 79																																
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																										 175																									 175																						 -																																					

Total	General	&	Administrative 115,612$														 96,777$																 80,781$												 15,997$																				

Ridgewood	Trails

2



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Ridgewood	Trails

Operations	&	Maintenance

Amenity	Center	Expenditures
Insurance 17,029$																	 17,029$																 15,866$												 1,163$																							
Amenity	Manager 42,876																			 35,730																		 35,730															 -																																					
Facility	Assistant 7,500																						 6,250																					 -																													 6,250																									
General	Facility	Maintenance 12,190																			 10,158																		 4,305																		 5,853																									
Repairs	&	Replacements 30,000																			 25,000																		 30,845															 (5,845)																							
Lifeguards 19,488																			 8,484																					 8,484																		 -																																					
Pool	Maintenance 18,950																			 17,145																		 17,145															 -																																					
Pool	Chemicals 17,798																			 14,832																		 4,722																		 10,110																						
Water	&	Sewer 13,000																			 10,833																		 9,168																		 1,666																									
Electric 16,100																			 13,417																		 11,163															 2,253																									
Internet/Cable 6,840																						 5,700																					 6,329																		 (629)																											
Janitorial 11,891																			 9,909																					 9,909																		 -																																					
Janitorial	Supplies 2,500																						 2,083																					 791																						 1,292																									
Security	System 8,467																						 7,056																					 7,306																		 (250)																											
Refuse	Service 3,012																						 2,510																					 2,633																		 (123)																											
Special	Events 5,000																						 3,146																					 3,146																		 -																																					
Pool	Permit 475																										 475																									 475																						 -																																					
Pest	Control 1,200																						 1,000																					 919																						 81																																
Access	Cards 1,000																						 833																									 470																						 363																													

Subtotal	Amenity	Center	Expenditures 235,316$														 191,591$													 169,407$									 22,184$																				

Grounds	Maintenance	Expenditures
Operations	Management 25,785$																	 21,488$																 21,488$												 -$																																		
Electric 3,000																						 2,500																					 2,045																		 455																													
Water 8,300																						 6,916																					 6,498																		 418																													
Repairs	&	Maintenance 18,200																			 15,167																		 17,017															 (1,850)																							
Landscape	Maintenance 143,582																 119,652															 109,761												 9,890																									
Lake	Maintenance 8,802																						 7,335																					 6,920																		 415																													
Irrigation	Repairs 5,000																						 962																									 962																						 -																																					

Subtotal	Grounds	Maintenance	Expenditures 212,669$														 174,019$													 164,691$									 9,329$																							

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 447,984$														 365,611$													 334,098$									 31,513$																				

Total	Expenditures 563,596$														 462,388$													 414,879$									 47,510$																				

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 64,556$																	 163,764$													 220,425$									 56,661$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Capital	Reserve	Transfer	out (65,976)$															 (65,976)$														 (65,976)$										 -$																																		

Subtotal	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) (65,976)$															 (65,976)$														 (65,976)$										 -$																																		

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (1,420)$																		 97,788$																 154,449$									 56,661$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 1,420$																				 249,108$									

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 403,557$									

3



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues
	

Interest 2,000																						 2,000																						 7,572																						 5,572																						

Total		Revenues 2,000$																				 2,000$																			 7,572$																				 5,572$																				

Expenditures:

Capital	Reserves 60,000$																	 50,000$																 43,926$																	 6,074$																				
Other	Curent	Charges 600																										 500																										 293																										 207																										
Repair	&	Replacement -																																		 -																																	 3,053																						 (3,053)																				

Total	Expenditures 60,600$																	 50,500$																 47,271$																	 3,229$																				

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (58,600)$															 (48,500)$														 (39,700)$															 8,800$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Capital	Reserve	Transfer	In 65,976$																	 65,976$																 65,976																			 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) 65,976$																	 65,976$																 65,976$																	 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 7,376$																				 17,476$																 26,276$																	 8,800$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 208,426$														 189,627$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 215,802$														 215,903$														

4



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	-	2007A

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual

Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	

Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 13,359$																	 13,359$																	 13,391																			 32$																											

Interest	Income 500																										 417																										 734																										 318																										

Total		Revenues 13,859$																	 13,775$																	 14,125$																	 350$																								

Expenditures:

Interest	-	11/1 3,531$																				 3,531$																				 3,531																						 -$																															
Interest	-	5/1 3,531																						 3,531																						 3,531																						 -																																		
Principal	-	5/1 5,000																						 5,000																						 5,000																						 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 12,063$																	 12,063$																	 12,063$																	 -$																															

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 1,796$																				 2,063$																				

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 1,796$																				 -$																															 2,063$																				 -$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 6,471$																				 16,877$																	
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 8,267$																				 18,940$																	

5



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	Series	-	2007A
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues
	

Interest	Income -$																															 -$																															 42																													 42$																											

Total		Revenues -$																															 -$																															 42$																											 42$																											

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 42$																											 42$																											

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance -$																															 -$																															 42$																											 42$																											

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 1,207$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 1,249$																				

6



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$																								 42,595$																 543,625$													 2,500$																			 2,491$																			 8,211$																			 10,680$																 1,057$																			 2,802$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 613,960$													
Interest	Earned/Misc.	Income 641																									 469																									 1,460																					 3,010																					 1,985																					 2,147																					 2,909																					 1,682																					 1,470																					 1,497																					 -																																	 -																																	 17,269																		
Rental	Revenue -																																	 550																									 150																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,000																					 150																									 150																									 1,125																					 950																									 -																																	 -																																	 4,075																					

Total		Revenues 641$																							 43,614$																 545,236$													 5,510$																			 4,475$																			 11,357$																 13,738$																 2,889$																			 5,397$																			 2,447$																			 -$																								 -$																								 635,304$													

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 -$																								 5,000$																			
PR-FICA -																																	 77																												 -																																	 77																												 -																																	 77																												 -																																	 77																												 -																																	 77																												 -																																	 -																																	 383																									
Engineering -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 110																									 -																																	 370																									 1,720																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,200																					
Attorney 336																									 800																									 -																																	 384																									 166																									 785																									 65																												 1,813																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 4,349																					
Annual	Audit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Assessment	Administration 5,576																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,576																					
Arbitrage	Rebate -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 600																									 -																																	 -																																	 600																									
Dissemination	Agent 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 94																												 -																																	 -																																	 937																									
Trustee	Fees 1,129																					 -																																	 -																																	 3,388																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 4,517																					
Management	Fees 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 4,277																					 -																																	 -																																	 42,767																		
Information	Technology 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 159																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,590																					
Website	Maintenance 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 106																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,060																					
Telephone -																																	 45																												 -																																	 20																												 -																																	 15																												 -																																	 21																												 26																												 23																												 -																																	 -																																	 150																									
Postage	&	Delivery 60																												 29																												 81																												 28																												 79																												 8																															 12																												 7																															 516																									 122																									 -																																	 -																																	 942																									
Insurance	General	Liability 8,267																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 8,267																					
Printing	&	Binding 39																												 0																															 30																												 1																															 23																												 15																												 35																												 42																												 707																									 27																												 -																																	 -																																	 919																									
Legal	Advertising 46																												 -																																	 45																												 -																																	 46																												 -																																	 110																									 46																												 756																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,050																					
Other	Current	Charges -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 10																												 53																												 30																												 37																												 68																												 48																												 49																												 -																																	 -																																	 296																									
Office	Supplies 1																															 0																															 0																															 0																															 1																															 0																															 1																															 0																															 1																															 0																															 -																																	 -																																	 4																															
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 175																									

Total	General	&	Administrative 20,265$																 6,586$																			 4,792$																			 9,654$																			 5,003$																			 6,934$																			 6,615$																			 7,709$																			 6,689$																			 6,533$																			 -$																														 -$																														 80,781$																

Month	to	Month

7



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Operations	&	Maintenance

Amenity	Center	Expenditures
Insurance 15,866$																 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 15,866$																
Amenity	Manager 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 3,573																					 -																																	 -																																	 35,730																		
Facility	Assistant -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
General	Facility	Maintenance 422																									 425																									 164																									 -																																	 621																									 217																									 1,097																					 215																									 1,144																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 4,305																					
Repairs	&	Replacements 2,591																					 2,942																					 1,843																					 3,129																					 2,296																					 3,506																					 996																									 3,629																					 9,913																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 30,845																		
Lifeguards -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 907																									 -																																	 3,000																					 4,577																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 8,484																					
Pool	Maintenance 1,579																					 1,579																					 1,579																					 1,579																					 1,579																					 1,579																					 1,854																					 1,579																					 1,579																					 2,658																					 -																																	 -																																	 17,145																		
Pool	Chemicals 142																									 -																																	 1,036																					 76																												 64																												 1,252																					 201																									 -																																	 1,390																					 562																									 -																																	 -																																	 4,722																					
Water	&	Sewer 789																									 948																									 890																									 965																									 810																									 858																									 825																									 999																									 960																									 1,124																					 -																																	 -																																	 9,168																					
Electric 1,087																					 1,009																					 1,155																					 1,091																					 1,029																					 874																									 965																									 1,007																					 1,451																					 1,495																					 -																																	 -																																	 11,163																		
Internet/Cable 563																									 594																									 594																									 623																									 659																									 659																									 659																									 659																									 659																									 659																									 -																																	 -																																	 6,329																					
Janitorial 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 991																									 -																																	 -																																	 9,909																					
Janitorial	Supplies -																																	 -																																	 69																												 -																																	 103																									 119																									 123																									 212																									 165																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 791																									
Security	System 701																									 2,035																					 558																									 573																									 573																									 573																									 573																									 716																									 430																									 573																									 -																																	 -																																	 7,306																					
Refuse	Service 257																									 258																									 258																									 257																									 261																									 261																									 259																									 276																									 266																									 279																									 -																																	 -																																	 2,633																					
Special	Events -																																	 1,457																					 571																									 -																																	 319																									 -																																	 800																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 3,146																					
Pool	Permit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 475																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 475																									
Pest	Control 90																												 90																												 90																												 93																												 93																												 93																												 93																												 93																												 93																												 93																												 -																																	 -																																	 919																									
Access	Cards -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 470																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 470																									

Subtotal	Amenity	Center	Expenditures 28,652$																 15,900$																 13,370$																 12,950$																 12,972$																 15,463$																 13,010$																 17,893$																 27,191$																 12,007$																 -$																														 -$																														 169,407$													

Grounds	Maintenance	Expenditures
Operations	Management 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 2,149$																			 -$																								 -$																								 21,488$																
Electric 193																									 201																									 199																									 203																									 204																									 204																									 203																									 201																									 219																									 219																									 -																																	 -																																	 2,045																					
Water 493																									 678																									 620																									 484																									 591																									 417																									 572																									 664																									 964																									 1,014																					 -																																	 -																																	 6,498																					
Repairs	&	Maintenance 1,579																					 1,413																					 2,440																					 1,768																					 3,347																					 5,249																					 520																									 340																									 360																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 17,017																		
Landscape	Maintenance 11,953																		 10,704																		 11,429																		 11,454																		 10,704																		 10,704																		 10,704																		 10,704																		 10,704																		 10,704																		 -																																	 -																																	 109,761															
Lake	Maintenance 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 692																									 -																																	 -																																	 6,920																					
Irrigation	Repairs -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 727																									 -																																	 -																																	 235																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 962																									

Subtotal	Grounds	Maintenance	Expenditures 17,058$																 15,837$																 17,529$																 16,749$																 18,414$																 19,415$																 14,839$																 14,985$																 15,088$																 14,777$																 -$																														 -$																														 164,691$													

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 45,710$																 31,736$																 30,899$																 29,699$																 31,385$																 34,877$																 27,849$																 32,878$																 42,279$																 26,784$																 -$																														 -$																														 334,098$													

Reserves
Capital	Reserve	Transfer	Out -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (65,976)$														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (65,976)																

Total	Reserves -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (65,976)$														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (65,976)$														

Total	Expenditures 65,975$																 38,323$																 35,691$																 39,353$																 36,388$																 41,812$																 (31,512)$														 40,588$																 48,968$																 33,317$																 -$																														 -$																														 414,879$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (65,333)$														 5,291$																			 509,545$													 (33,844)$														 (31,913)$														 (30,454)$														 45,250$																 (37,699)$														 (43,571)$														 (30,870)$														 -$																														 -$																														 220,425$													

8



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Interest	Rate: 5.65%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2038
Reserve	Fund	Definition 6.949%	of	Outstanding	Bonds
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $8,339
Reserve	Fund	Balance $10,913

Bonds	Outstanding	-	6/1/2019 $150,000
Less:		May	1,	2020	(Mandatory) (5,000)																																																												
Less:		May	1,	2021	(Mandatory) (5,000)																																																												
Less:		May	1,	2022	(Mandatory) (5,000)																																																												
Less:		May	1,	2023	(Mandatory) (5,000)																																																												
Less:		May	1,	2024	(Mandatory) (5,000)																																																												
Less:		May	1,	2025	(Mandatory) (5,000)																																																												

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $120,000

Series	2007A	Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



ASSESSED #	UNITS	ASSESSED
SERIES	2007A		DEBT	
ASMT	ASSESSED

	O&M						
ASSESSED

TOTAL		
ASSESSED

NET		TAX	ROLL	ASSESSED 691 13,358.77																												 612,487.98								 625,846.75										

TOTAL	NET	ASSESSMENTS 691 13,358.77																												 612,487.98								 625,846.75										

CLAY	COUNTY		DISTRIBUTION DATE	RECEIVED
SERIES	2007A	DEBT	

RECEIPTS O&M	RECEIPTS
TOTAL	

RECEIVED
1 11/7/24 56.91																																						 2,609.23														 2,666.14																
2 11/13/24 174.62																																			 8,006.34														 8,180.96																
3 11/26/24 697.50																																			 31,979.55											 32,677.05													
4 12/6/24 11,513.47																												 527,882.75								 539,396.22										
5 12/9/24 343.36																																			 15,742.61											 16,085.97													
6 1/27/25 54.53																																						 2,499.92														 2,554.45																
7 2/6/25 54.32																																						 2,490.53														 2,544.85																
8 3/7/25 179.08																																			 8,210.58														 8,389.66																
9 4/7/25 232.93																																			 10,679.55											 10,912.48													
10 5/6/25 23.05																																						 1,056.86														 1,079.91																
11 6/17/25 61.11																																						 2,801.94														 2,863.05																

-																																												 -																											 -																													

TOTAL	TAX	ROLL	RECEIPTS 																														13,390.89	 										613,959.85	 												627,350.74	

DEBT O&M TOTAL
100.24% 100.24% 100.24%

	

Ridgewood	Trails

Fiscal	Year	2025	Assessments	Receipts	Summary

SUMMARY	OF	TAX	ROLL	RECEIPTS

PERCENT	COLLECTED	
TOTAL	PERCENT	COLLECTED

Community	Development	District

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Fund Date Check	Numbers Amount

General	Fund
6/1/25	-	6/30/25 2828-2841 $43,501.90
7/1/2025	-	7/31/25 2842-2852 $34,144.94

$77,646.84

Capital	Reserve

Autopayments
6/2/25 CCUA $1,662.69
6/6/25 Comcast 276.77	
6/9/25 Waste	Pro 266.29	
6/12/25 Comcast 382.36	
6/25/25 Newlane	Finance 395.12	
6/30/25 CCUA 1,924.55	
7/1/25 Clay	Electric 1,670.40	
7/7/25 Comcast 276.81	
7/8/25 Waste	Pro 279.39	
7/14/25 Comcast 382.40	
7/18/25 IRS	FICA	tax	payment 153.00	
7/25/25 CCUA 2,138.40	
7/28/25 Newlane	Finance 395.12	
7/31/25 Clay	Electric 1,714.00	

$11,917.30

TOTAL $89,564.14

Ridgewood	Trails
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Fiscal	Year	2025

Check	Register

11



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/25/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/05/25 00088 6/03/25 144706   202506 310-51300-42500                                     *              644.03
MAILED NOTICED

6/03/25 144706   202506 310-51300-42000                                     *              504.43
POSTAGE

ADVANCED DIRECT MARKETING SERVICES                              1,148.46 002828
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00119 5/27/25 9363319  202505 330-53800-46301                                     *              235.26

RAIN/FREEZE SENSOR WIRED
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC                                 235.26 002829

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00119 6/01/25 9367735  202506 330-53800-46200                                     *           10,703.68

JUN LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC                              10,703.68 002830

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00126 6/01/25 424933   202506 320-57200-34510                                     *               35.00

ACCESS CONTROL - JUN
HI-TECH SYSTEM ASSOCIATES                                          35.00 002831

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00042 6/01/25 278908B  202506 330-53800-46400                                     *              692.00

JUN LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            692.00 002832

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00039 5/16/25 421      202504 320-57200-46100                                     *              788.27

APR AMENITY GEN MAINT
5/16/25 421      202504 320-57200-46000                                     *              996.35

APR AMENITY RPR & RPLC
5/16/25 421      202504 320-57200-52200                                     *              122.78

APR JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
5/16/25 421      202504 330-53800-46000                                     *              519.99

APR FIELD RPR AND RPLC
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               2,427.39 002833

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00118 5/22/25 76052142 202505 320-57200-34510                                     *              142.95

JUN SECURITY SERVICES
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               142.95 002834

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00003 6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,276.67

JUN MANAGEMENT FEES
6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-35200                                     *              106.00

JUN WEBSITE ADMIN
6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-35100                                     *              159.00

JUN INFO TECH
6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-31300                                     *               93.67

JUN DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .63

OFFICE SUPPLIES

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/25/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-42000                                     *               12.01
POSTAGE

6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-42500                                     *               63.45
COPIES

6/01/25 277      202506 310-51300-41000                                     *               25.94
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,737.37 002835
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00143 6/04/25 7089380  202506 320-57200-52100                                     *              897.00

POOL CHEMICALS-JUNE
HAWKINS INC                                                       897.00 002836

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00039 6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-34200                                     *              990.92

JUN JANITORIAL SERVICES
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,579.17

JUN POOL MAINT SERVICES
6/01/25 422      202506 330-53800-34000                                     *            2,148.75

JUN CONTRACT ADMIN
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-46200                                     *            3,573.00

JUN FACILITY MANAGEMENT
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-46000                                     *            3,785.40

POOL RPR-PREM MOTOR 3-PH
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-46000                                     *            1,859.97

POOL RPR-3-PH VFD 230VAC
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-46000                                     *              577.50

POOL RPR-BROKEN MARK TILE
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-52100                                     *               52.47

POOL CHEM-TRICHLOR
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-52100                                     *              153.45

POOL CHEM-LIQUID BLEACH
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-52100                                     *              133.65

POOL CEM-CAL HYPO
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-52100                                     *                6.11

POOL CHEM-PHOSPHATE RMVR
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-52100                                     *               35.48

POOL CHEM-DE POWDER
6/01/25 422      202506 320-57200-52100                                     *              126.48

POOL CHEM-TILE SOAP
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                              15,022.35 002837

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00130 6/10/25 62078019 202506 320-57200-43200                                     *               92.70

JUN RODENT CONTROL
TURNER PEST CONTROL LLC                                            92.70 002838

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00015 6/05/25 2025-298 202506 310-51300-48000                                     *              378.00

1/2 PUB HEAR FY26 BUD 7/9

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/25/25          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

6/05/25 2025-298 202506 310-51300-48000                                     *              378.00
2/2 PUB HEAR FY26 BUD 7/9

OSTEEN MEDIA GROUP - CLAY TODAY                                   756.00 002839
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00039 5/31/25 423      202505 320-57200-45100                                     *            2,999.63

MAY LIFEGUARDS
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               2,999.63 002840

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00039 6/18/25 425      202505 320-57200-46100                                     *              214.83

MAY AMENITY GENERAL MAINT
6/18/25 425      202505 320-57200-46000                                     *            2,845.03

MAY AMENITY RPR & RPLC
6/18/25 425      202505 320-57200-52200                                     *              212.26

MAY JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
6/18/25 425      202505 330-53800-46000                                     *              339.99

MAY FIELD RPR & MAINT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               3,612.11 002841

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00119 7/01/25 9401158  202507 330-53800-46200                                     *           10,703.68

JUL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC                              10,703.68 002842

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00151 6/29/25 06292025 202506 300-36900-10100                                     *              500.00

DEPOSIT REFUND
STEVE AND SHILO SULLIVAN                                          500.00 002843

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00118 6/21/25 76213064 202507 320-57200-34510                                     *              142.95

JUL SECURITY SERVICES
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               142.95 002844

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00003 7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,276.67

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-35200                                     *              106.00

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-35100                                     *              159.00

JUL INFO TECH
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-31300                                     *               93.67

JUL DISSEM AGENT
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .30

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-42000                                     *              121.53

POSTAGE
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-42500                                     *               26.70

COPIES
7/01/25 278      202507 310-51300-41000                                     *               23.15

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,807.02 002845

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/25/25          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/17/25 00143 7/10/25 7127871  202507 320-57200-46500                                     *              897.00
POOL CHEMICALS - JUL

HAWKINS INC                                                       897.00 002846
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00126 7/01/25 426503   202507 320-57200-34510                                     *               35.00

ACCESS CONTROL - JUL
HI-TECH SYSTEM ASSOCIATES                                          35.00 002847

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00117 7/09/25 3594727  202503 310-51300-31500                                     *              785.00

MAR GENERAL SERVICES
7/09/25 3594727A 202504 310-51300-31500                                     *               65.00

APR GENERAL SERVICES
7/09/25 3594727B 202505 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,812.50

MAY GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  2,662.50 002848

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00042 7/01/25 287100B  202507 330-53800-46400                                     *              692.00

JUL LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            692.00 002849

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00039 6/30/25 426      202506 320-57200-45100                                     *            4,577.16

JUN LIFEGUARDS
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               4,577.16 002850

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00039 7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-34200                                     *              990.92

JUL JANITORIAL SERVICES
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,579.17

JUL POOL MAINT SERVICES
7/01/25 424      202507 330-53800-34000                                     *            2,148.75

JUL CONTRACT ADMIN
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-46200                                     *            3,573.00

JUL FACILITY MANAGEMENT
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-52100                                     *              279.84

POOL CHEM-TRICHLOR
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-52100                                     *              146.30

POOL CHEM-LIQUID BLEACH
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-52100                                     *               12.23

POOL CHEM-MURIATIC ACID
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-52100                                     *               36.63

POOL CHEM-PHOSPHATE RMVR
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-52100                                     *               86.68

POOL CHEM-CYANURIC ACID
7/01/25 424      202507 320-57200-46500                                     *              181.41

POOL RPR-NEW TORO VALVE
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               9,034.93 002851

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/25/25          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/17/25 00130 7/02/25 62090402 202507 320-57200-43200                                     *               92.70
JUL RODENT CONTROL

TURNER PEST CONTROL LLC                                            92.70 002852
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 77,646.84

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               77,646.84

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO






















































































	09.03.25 Meeting
	III. A. T & M Electric
	III. B. J.C. Harward
	IV. Consideration of Proposal with Sterling for Egress Gate
	V. C. Manager – Goals and Objectives for Fiscal Year 2026
	V. E. 1. Amenity Manager Report
	V. E. 2. Brightview QSA Report
	VII. A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 9, 2025, Meeting
	VII. B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
	VII. C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	VII. D. Approval of Check Register



